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Dubai Parks and Resorts will become the largest  
multi-themed, year-round leisure and entertainment 
destination in the Middle East region, providing 
memorable world-class attractions such as motiongate™ 
Dubai, LEGOLAND® Dubai, Bollywood Parks™ Dubai, 
LEGOLAND® Water Park, and the Polynesian-themed 
Lapita™ Hotel. All are linked by a grand entrance plaza, 
Riverland™ Dubai, a retail and dining area which will serve 
both park visitors and UAE residents. The 25 million sq ft 
resort is set for official opening in October, 2016 and will 
create a family entertainment industry supporting Dubai’s 
status as a leading international tourism and leisure hub.







every journey begins  
with a vision

Chairman’s statement
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The leadership and vision of the UAE government has 
always been a source of inspiration, and Dubai Parks and 
Resorts is a tangible result. Dubai Parks and Resorts is 
working towards achieving the goals of UAE Vice President, 
Prime Minister and Ruler of Dubai, His Highness Sheikh 
Mohammed bin Rashid Al Maktoum, who mandated the 
development of this unique project that will benefit both 
the residents and tourists of Dubai.
As we advance towards completion,  
I know it will remain a source of great 
pride for all of us who have been 
involved in its concept and execution 
– as it will for the entire population  
of Dubai and the UAE. 

Here at Dubai parks and Resorts, we 
have encapsulated a concept that  
is both ambitious and truly ground-
breaking, which captures the 
imagination that has shaped the growth 
of the uAe. While Dubai is already home 
to the world’s tallest tower, the world’s 
busiest airport, and a spectacular 
skyline, we take great pride in knowing 
that Dubai parks and Resorts is a major 
step towards positioning the uAe 
further as a major global tourist 
destination, and fulfilling Dubai’s goal 
of attracting 20 million visitors by 2020.

Dubai parks and Resorts has been 
designed as the first entertainment 
destination of its kind – simultaneously 
opening the gates of three unique 
theme parks in october, 2016, a 
monumental undertaking in its own 
right. this project will feature 
intellectual properties from globally 
recognised and well-loved movies  
and brands, bringing leaders and 
experts from the global leisure and 
entertainment industry to create a 
family destination that is expected  
to draw 6.7 million visits in 2017, our 
first full year of operation. 

our goal is to make Dubai parks and 
Resorts the foremost provider of 
world-class leisure and entertainment 
attractions in the region and, ultimately, 
across the globe. this aligns with 
Dubai’s tourism Vision 2020 – to be 
innovative, inspirational, and practical. 
We are confident that our efforts will 
contribute to achieving that vision and 
Dubai parks and Resorts becoming a 
source of pride for the uAe. In doing so, 
we will become an engine for national 
economic growth by generating robust 
business opportunities and thousands 
of new jobs.

From the very beginning, we were 
conscious of the need to balance our 
vision with practicality, recognising the 
obstacles we would have to overcome 
while meticulously planning our way 
forward. now, close to two years after 
the idea of Dubai parks and Resorts  
was first announced, we are well on our 
way to bringing this dream into reality 
– step by step, from drawing board to 
completed project. 

the benefits of this practical approach 
are evident. the project is taking shape 
in the form of advanced site works  
and construction as we progress rapidly 
towards our Grand opening next year, 
and the creation of a unique destination: 
a reality that will be shared by many 
millions of visitors from all over the world. 

With our compelling attractions, Dubai 
parks and Resorts is set to capture  
the significant growth opportunity 
represented by creating the middle 
east’s first premier year-round leisure 
and entertainment destination. 

Strong demographic growth and 
favourable economic conditions within 
the uAe and the wider region will drive 
strong local demand, and Dubai’s 
location and world-class tourist 
infrastructure will support our growth. 

the leadership and vision of the uAe 
government has always been a source 
of inspiration, and Dubai parks and 
Resorts is a tangible result. As we 
advance towards completion, I know it 
will remain a source of great pride for  
all of us who have been involved in its 
concept and execution – as it will for the 
entire population of Dubai and the uAe. 

he abdulla al habbai
Chairman
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At Dubai Parks and Resorts, we are committed  
to creating an unforgettable destination. 
Throughout the course of our journey,  
we have sought to create a truly unique 
experience that will have our visitors 
talking about their stay long after they 
leave – and keep them coming back again 
and again. Since the inception of this 
landmark project, we have been rigorous 
when developing every facet of Dubai 
Parks and Resorts – from our themes, to 
our partners and our unique attractions. 

In 2014 we reached many significant 
milestones in this respect, including the 
launch of Dubai Parks and Resorts as 
an identifiable destination brand and  
a symbol of Dubai’s commitment to 
attracting 20 million visitors by 2020. 
Dubai Parks and Resorts completed the 
development of the motiongate™ Dubai 
and Bollywood Parks™ Dubai brands 
– unique concepts which will feature 
the well-known and beloved intellectual 
properties belonging to our partners Sony 
Picture Studios, DreamWorks Animation, 
and Lionsgate, as well as a selection  
of Bollywood blockbuster movies. 

We also look forward to hosting the first 
LEGOLAND® experience in the region, 
along with the LEGOLAND® Water Park, 
the region’s first dedicated water park for 
younger children. Over the past year we 
have also developed the Riverland™ Dubai 
concept, which is a destination in its own 
right, serving as a grand entry plaza with 
unique dining and retail outlets providing 
non-stop entertainment as it ushers 
visitors to our three main theme parks. 
Our destination would not be complete 
without the Lapita™ Hotel, where  
our guests can relax and spend time 
with their family and friends within  
a Polynesian-themed resort.

In short, Dubai Parks and Resorts will be 
the only destination in the world offering 
the best of Hollywood, kids’ entertainment, 
and Bollywood, from East to West, all 
in one place and providing families with 
quality fun throughout the year. 

unique customer experience
Our vision, that we strive towards daily, 
is for our guests to ‘Experience Amazing’.
Our diversified offering will more than 
live up to that aspiration, providing 
family experiences in a theme park 
environment that combines the best 
the world has to offer, here in Dubai, 
the melting-pot of 200 nationalities. 

Dubai Parks and Resorts is built  
on the belief that every aspect  
of the park needs to be thoroughly 
designed to ensure maximum  
customer satisfaction.

Examples of this are the ‘smart’ park 
technology that will be created through 
an agreement with Etisalat for overall 
IT strategy, and a vehicle-free destination 
served by dedicated on-site transport. 
A dedicated Dubai Metro station is also 
planned, along with convenient road 
access and ample parking within easy 
reach of all attractions. Our vision  
is to make Dubai Parks and Resorts  
a fully immersive experience where 
visitors can relax and enjoy their time 
with their families. 

In motiongate™ Dubai we have 
handpicked movies that are well-loved 
in the region and in many cases will be 
integrated into a theme park attraction 
for the first time, such as The Hunger 
Games, Ghostbusters, and How to  
Train Your Dragon, among others. Our 
Bollywood Parks™ Dubai is the first  
of its kind in the world, and the movies 
have a large fan base across the GCC 
and Indian subcontinent.

One of our great strengths is in being 
the only destination of its kind in the 
world, and the only multi-themed 
leisure and entertainment destination 
in the Middle East and Indian sub-
continent – meaning that we are set  
to lead the industry. Dubai was one of  
the world’s top five fastest-growing 
economies in 2014 and is expected to 
attract close to 20 million tourists by 
2020. As an innately Dubai company, 
we are very conscious of our position  
to both benefit from and hopefully 
contribute towards these numbers. 

on time and on budget
With budgeted development costs  
of AED 10.5 billion on a site area of  
25 million square feet, Dubai Parks  
and Resorts is a massive project and 
the time-scale is unprecedented in the 
global theme park industry. To ensure 
we meet budget and delivery targets, 
we have assembled a world-class 
project management team with more 
than 500 years’ cumulative expertise  
in our specialist area of operations. 

By the end of 2014, 88 percent of the 
total design had been completed, 100 
percent of all theme park rides were 
procured, and 64 percent of resort-wide 
utilities and roads were finished. All 
major agreements with IP partners and 
operators were also in place. 

We have also signed a collaboration 
agreement with Emirates, which will 
enable our Destination Management 
team to reach our visitors across the 
globe as well as exchange knowledge 
and expertise, specifically around 
marketing co-ordination.

In the last quarter of 2014, we secured 
AED 4.2 billion of syndicated finance 
facilities and successfully closed our 
AED 2.5 billion stock market listing on 
the Dubai Financial Market. We remain 
close to our founders, Meraas, who hold 
60 percent of our equity.

looking forward
In the first half of 2015, we expect  
to complete procurement of facility 
packages and to begin procurement  
of show packages. 

We plan to achieve a cumulative total  
of AED 7.5 billion in contracts awarded  
in the course of the year, and cumulative 
project expenditure is set to reach  
AED 5.9 billion. By the end of 2015, we 
plan to have completed all underground 
utilities resort-wide and more than  
70 percent of facilities construction.

In 2015 we plan on signing a number  
of strategic deals, such as our first 
revenue-generating deal with Picsolve 
International, one of the world’s leading 
image solutions providers, partnering with 
Wizcraft International Entertainments, 
India’s leading communications and 
entertainment company, to bring a 
Broadway-styled Bollywood show to the 
Rajmahal Theatre, and an agreement 
with dnata, the largest air travel  
service provider in the Middle East, to 
collaborate on distribution and sales.

With 22 months to go from the end of 
2014 until our scheduled opening, we 
can take every encouragement from the 
progress made in 2014, and can have 
every confidence that we can achieve 
our immediate and long-term goals.

raed al nuaimi 
Chief Executive Officer

Ceo’s statement
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at a glance

the miDDle east region’s 
largest multi-themeD leisure 
anD entertainment Destination
Strategically located on Sheikh Zayed Road, Dubai’s 
main traffic artery, and close to three international 
airports – Dubai Parks and Resorts is set to become  
a premier year-round leisure and entertainment 
destination, drawing visitors from around the world. 

Dubai Parks and Resorts’ world-leading partners and 
brands will provide unforgettable experiences. Many of 
the rides and attractions appear for the first time in a 
theme park context – bringing popular movie characters  
to life in a wonderland of imagination.

Abu Dhabi International Airport

Dubai World Central –  
Al Maktoum International Airport

Sheikh Zayed Road

Dubai International Airport
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 2016
Grand opening scheduled  
for October, 2016

Official opening is on track for the scheduled 
date of October, 2016. This is the first time  
in the world that three theme parks, a water 
park, a hotel and a retail dining area will open  
on the same day.

 100
Over 100 rides  
and attractions

The destination will feature more than 100 rides 
and attractions, each handpicked to provide  
a wide-ranging appeal for the entire family.  
From Hollywood and Bollywood to the best in 
children’s entertainment, the resort is set to 
create an immersive experience that will leave 
visitors with lifelong memories.

 25 m sq ft 
The destination is set across  
25 million sq ft of land

The vehicle-free resort has been designed  
with an integrated internal transportation 
system using boats and trains, allowing visitors 
to relax and enjoy time with their family away 
from city life.

Bollywood Parks™ Dubai 

Operators

The Spanish entertainment 
operator, Parques Reunidos 
Servicios Centrales, will 
operate motiongate™ Dubai 
and Bollywood Parks™ Dubai

Merlin Entertainments plc, 
the second-largest global 
entertainment attractions 
operator, is the operator  
for LEGOLAND® Dubai and 
LEGOLAND® Water Park

The Marriott 
Group will 
operate the 
Lapita™ Hotel

World-class partners have been selected to provide the best range of attractions, with many intellectual  
properties appearing for the first time in a theme park context.

motiongate™ Dubai 

Sony Pictures Studios

DreamWorks Animation Studios Lionsgate

© 2015 All respective copyrights and trademarks are owned and controlled by their respective rights holders. All Rights Reserved.

© 2015 All respective copyrights and trademarks are owned and controlled by their respective rights holders.  
All Rights Reserved.

© 2015 All respective copyrights and trademarks are owned and 
controlled by their respective rights holders. All Rights Reserved.
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•	Hollywood	movie	based	theme	park
•	27	rides	and	attractions
•	5	themed	zones
	 -	DreamWorks
	 -	Smurfs	Village
	 -	Sony	Picture	Studios
	 -	Lionsgate
	 -	Studio	Central
•		4m	sq	ft	(initial	footprint		
of	1.9m	sq	ft)

•		First	LEGOLAND®	theme	park	in	the	
Middle	East	and	the	seventh	worldwide
•	40	rides	and	attractions
•		6	themed	zones
	 -	LEGO®	City
	 -	Adventure
	 -	LEGO®	Kingdom
	 -	Imagination
	 -	Factory
	 -	Miniland
•		3.2m	sq	ft	(initial	footprint		
of	1.75m	sq	ft)

At a glance Continued

We believe that our multi-theme park approach 
and portfolio of intellectual property will attract 
guests from around the world to experience the 
unique destination that is Dubai Parks and Resorts. 

1 2

9

7
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•		Bollywood	movie	based	theme	park
•		16	rides	and	attractions
•		5	themed	zones
	 -	Bollywood	Boulevard
	 -	Mumbai	Chowk
	 -	Rustic	Ravine
	 -		Bollywood	Film	Studios		
and	Hall	of	Heroes

	 -	Regal	Plaza
•		2.1m	sq	ft	(initial	footprint		
of	1.7m	sq	ft)

•		First	water	park	in	the	region	
designed	for	younger	children
•		20	attractions	with	more	than		
70	unique	LEGO®	models
•		Mix	of	kid-friendly	rides	including		
a	lazy	river,	water	slides	and	play	
areas	for	toddlers,	a	wave	pool	and	
child-friendly	slides

•	Set	on	an	artificial	lagoon
•		Polynesian-themed	family	resort
•		500	rooms	and	three	villas	set	across	
eight	low-rise	clusters
•	Part	of	the	Autograph	Collection

•		A	grand	entrance	plaza	that		
will	interconnect	the	parks	and	
hotel,	featuring	unique	retail		
and	dining	experiences	as	well	as	
events	and	concerts
•	4	themed	zones
	 -	French	Village
	 -	Boardwalk
	 -	India	Gate
	 -	The	Peninsula
•	220,000	sq	ft	of	leasable	space

	7   Common Back of House

	8   Common Areas

	9   Easement Rights

2

3
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we have establisheD  
a strong FinanCial anD 
operational trajeCtory
At AED 10.5 billion budgeted development cost,  
on a site of roughly 25 million sq feet, Dubai Parks  
and Resorts is not only a massive project, it is  
being undertaken over a compressed timeframe 
unprecedented in the theme park industry.

highlights of 2014

*other comprises capitalised interest and other debt-related expenditures and corporate expenditures

AED 10.5 bn
Total estimated project cost  
of	AED	10.5	billion

60% equity and 40% debt through  
a syndicated finance facility

AED 6.3 bn
Total share capital

The company is 60% owned by Meraas 
and 40% by public shareholders

AED 2.5 bn
Funds	raised	by	initial	public 
offering	in	December,	2014

  Construction cost        Infrastructure cost        Land acquisition cost        Other*        Total uses

Uses of funds (AED million)

 5,785

  2,868

  896

  987

 10,536

summary of project financials
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As of December 31, 2014 the Company had not begun commercial operations so there is no operating revenue for the year

AED 2.2 bn
Value of property, equipment, 
investment properties and land  
at	end	of	2014

Advances to contractors and 
prepayments increased to  
AED 370 million during the year

2014 financial summary

Riverland™ 
Dubai

LEGOLAND® 
Dubai

Bollywood 
Parks™ Dubai Lapita™ Hotelmotiongate™ 

Dubai
Infrastructure  

and others
Key	indicators	 
(AED	millions) Total

Cumulative project 
expenditure as at the  
end of 2014

786 401 327 137 203 748 2,602

Project expenditure  
in 2014 637 362 276 128 200 642 2,245

Total Assets (AED million)

2013 2014

6,878

340

Dubai Parks and Resorts     /    Annual Report 2014
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Dubai Parks and Resorts is set to open  
in October, 2016. The highly skilled project 
management team has a proven record of  
delivery and more than 500 years of cumulative 
experience in specialist theme park disciplines. 

Construction well under way and key milestones have been achieved

The project was announced in 2012 and 
construction started in 2014. Major 
milestones such as securing government 
approvals, IP agreements, and appointing 
operators have been achieved. We have 
completed the orders for all the theme  
park rides, which are being manufactured 
mainly in Europe by world-class theme park 
vendors using ‘tried and tested’ show and 
ride technologies. Infrastructure is already 
well-advanced, with the power substation 
building due for completion in the third 
quarter of 2015. Work on district cooling 
has also progressed significantly, with 
completion scheduled by the end of 2015. 

The components of the resort are becoming 
clearly visible. Work on the DreamWorks 
building at motiongate™ Dubai is 
progressing rapidly. This enclosed steel-
based structure is built on 730,000 sq ft, 
the size of eight football fields, and will 
have a total capacity of 53 million cubic feet. 

Work on the flagship Rajmahal Theatre at 
Bollywood Parks™ Dubai, which will house 
over 800 seats, has made significant 
progress and will be topped out toward the 
third quarter of 2015.

Major IP agreements 

100%	complete
All operator agreements 

100%	complete

Major government 
approvals 

100%	complete
Theme park ride orders 

100%	complete

highlights of 2014 Continued

Ride orders placed; using 
tried and tested ride 
technology from leading 
global providers.

Master plan approved. 
Traffic Impact Study and 
Environment Impact 
Analysis approval obtained.

 100 %
All theme park rides  

had been procured by  
the end of 2014. 

Construction highlights
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A strong team of leading international consultants  
is helping to deliver the project.

Majority of facility packages procured or  
currently in procurement. Show packages 
procurement commences.

Concept and schematic design completed; 
detailed design to be completed by  
Q3 2015.

88 %
Percentage of concept and schematic 
design	completed	by	the	end	of	2014

As design nears completion, physical 
construction is forging ahead. 

64 %
Percentage of resort wide utilities and 
roads	completed	by	the	end	of	2014

The project is now arising from the 
desert and very visibly taking shape. 

31 %
Percentage of ride engineering and 
manufacturing completed by the end 
of	2014	

All rides are produced by overseas 
specialists, using tried and trusted 
technology.

Samsung C&T – responsible 
for programme management, 
ensuring that all distinct 
phases are managed in 
accordance with the agreed 
timetable and budget. 

Hill International – responsible 
for technical management of 
the design, construction, and 
installation of the attractions 
to meet the defined time and 
budget criteria.

Design 

88%	complete

Resort-wide roads  
and utilities 

64%	complete
Procurement 

50%	complete

Ride engineering & 
manufacturing 

31%	complete

Dubai Parks and Resorts     /    Annual Report 2014
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Raed Al Nuaimi
Chief Executive Officer 

Has held senior management 
roles over a 15-year period  
with companies such as 
Tatweer, Dubailand, and Dubai 
Properties Group. 

He was previously Chief Leisure 
and Entertainment Officer  
at Meraas Holding, where he 
helped develop new strategies 
and identify opportunities  
for the company in the leisure 
 and entertainment field. 

“Dubai will be proud of this 
project… we’re creating 
something for our nation  
and our region.” 

Paul La France
Chief Projects Officer 

With more than 37 years’ 
experience in worldwide 
entertainment and hospitality 
developments, he was 
previously Vice-President of 
Programme Management at 
Samsung C&T Corporation. 

Among the many projects with 
which he has been involved are 
Disneyland Paris, Walt Disney 
Studios Paris, Animal Kingdom 
(Florida), Hong Kong Disneyland 
Resort, Universal Studios 
Hollywood and CityWalk 
Expansion (California), Universal 
Studios Japan, and Royal Island 
Resort (Bahamas). 

“We’re on track for soft opening 
and handover to operators.” 

Matthew Priddy
Chief Technical Officer 

More than 35 years’ experience 
in prototype, project 
development, and real estate 
with expertise in the creative 
development of entertainment 
destination projects. 

He spent 20 years at the  
Walt Disney Company, with 
responsibility for design, 
engineering, manufacturing  
and overall project management 
for a number of Disney theme 
parks, resorts, and technical 
developments. 

He holds a bachelor’s degree  
in theatrical technology from 
the University of California,  
Los Angeles. 

“This is all-new, different, and 
has never been done before.” 

Sandesh Pandhare, CFA
Chief Financial and 
Investment Officer 

Has 23 years’ experience in  
the global private equity and 
investment industry, having 
previously held senior positions 
at prominent UAE companies 
such as Istithmar World and 
Jebel Ali Free Zone.

He holds a master’s degree  
in management studies  
from Mumbai University,  
India, a bachelor’s degree  
in engineering from Pune 
University, India and is a  
CFA charter holder. 

“We expect net income  
to be positive in 2018.”

TOP GLOBAL EXPERTS  
LEAD THE PROJECT

Executive management
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Stanford Pinto
Chief Parks Operating Officer

More than 20 years’ professional 
experience, with expertise in 
risk management, corporate 
governance, internal auditing, 
and process control and design 
management. 

He previously held senior 
executive positions within the 
business consulting and risk 
management divisions of 
leading accounting firms 
including Arthur Andersen  
and Ernst & Young. 

He holds an MBA from Pune 
University, India, and a bachelor’s 
degree in commerce from the 
University of Mumbai, India.

“Everything is exceptional –  
from the creative content to  
the materials used.”

Vinit Shah
Chief Destination 
Management Officer 

More than 15 years’ experience 
in the leisure and hospitality 
industry, having previously held 
senior management positions  
at Dubai Properties Group and 
several Fortune 500 companies. 

He holds an MBA from the 
Asian Institute of Management 
in the Philippines, a strategic 
finance certificate from the 
Vienna University of Economics 
and Business, and a master’s 
degree in commerce and 
business management from  
the University of Mumbai, India. 

“We’re working to be future-
proof – applying as much 
technology as we can.”

Aida Hamza 
Senior Vice-President, 
Business Support

More than 27 years’ experience in 
management, corporate affairs, 
marketing, and communications, 
having previously been Director of 
Supply Chain Management, 
Human Resources, Corporate 
Affairs and Marketing at Ejadah 
Asset Management Group, as well 
as Executive Director of Corporate 
Services at Istithmar World.

She has worked with leading 
companies in the UAE such  
as Dubai World, Standard 
Chartered Bank, ENOC, Citibank, 
and Emirates Broadcasting 
Corporation. 

She holds a bachelor’s  
degree in management and 
marketing from the Davis and 
Elkins College, West Virginia, 
United States. 

“Business excellence underpins 
everything we do.”

Klaus Assman 
Vice-President, Retail  
and Hospitality

More than 27 years’ experience 
in the hospitality industry 
across the UAE, Thailand, and 
the United States – leading  
the opening/renovation of 
numerous hotel properties.

He was previously General 
Manager of Sofitel Dubai 
Downtown, as well as 
completing tenures at Jumeirah 
Group in the UAE, Thailand, and 
the United States; Shangri-La 
Hotels and Resorts in the 
Philippines; Park Hyatt in 
Germany and the United States; 
Nikko Hotels in the United 
States and the United Kingdom, 
and Holiday Inn in Germany.

He holds a bachelor’s degree  
in hotel management from the 
Hotel School, Aachen, Germany. 

“Dubai’s first themed resort  
will become one of the great 
international destinations.”

Dubai Parks and Resorts     /    Annual Report 2014
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Capitalising on the miDDle east 
theme parK opportunity  
anD signiFiCant tourism growth
Location is a major advantage for Dubai Parks and Resorts, 
serving a previously untapped market that lacks a world-
class theme park destination. About three billion people  
live within a four-hour flight from Dubai – and double that 
figure are only eight hours away. 

the investment case

global attendance across top theme parks (2014, million)

Untapped theme park market in the Middle East and Indian sub-continent

Source: teA/AeCom 2014 theme Index and museum Index: the Global Attractions Attendance Report

134.6

6.4
3.4

1.1

2.5

1.1
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3.8
8 hours

4.7

4.4
5.0

19.6 2.8

54.9

15.0

8.5

8.3

6.4

Three billion people live within a four-hour flight from Dubai. 

Dubai Parks and Resorts will serve a vast untapped market 
that until now has lacked a major theme park destination. 
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Despite a proven appetite for mega 
leisure projects – Dubai has two  
of	the	world’s	top	15	water	parks	
globally – until now there has been no 
‘destination’ theme park to capitalise 
on the vast market that exists within  
a very accessible catchment area. 

Dubai has repeatedly demonstrated  
an unparalleled ability to develop world- 
class building and tourist destinations, 
from Dubai Mall – one of the largest  
in the world by built-up area* to Burj 
Khalifa – the world’s tallest building. 

Dubai Parks and Resorts is following  
in their path, backed by Meraas and 
aligned with Dubai’s strategic vision  
to position itself as a leading global 
tourism destination and economic hub. 

Strategically located close to large 
resident populations, international 
airports, local travel infrastructure,  
and high-traffic landmarks, Dubai Parks 
and Resorts is set to join the elite of 
the world’s theme park destinations. 

The broad product offering under 
multiple formats is designed to  
appeal to a wide spectrum of distinct 
customer demographics, with the total 
number of visits in 2017 – the first  
full year of operations – projected  
at 6.7 million. With industry-leading 
operators and world-class intellectual 
property partners – including the  
best of Hollywood and Bollywood 
studios, Dubai Parks and Resorts is 
ideally placed to capture a substantial 
global opportunity. 

The new Al Maktoum International 
Airport in Dubai is designed to handle 
160 million passengers by 2027, 
including Phase 2 expansion. 
Source: Inter pilot, the Safety and technical  
Journal of IFAlpA

	392	m
The	top	10	global	theme	park	groups	
recorded	392	million	visits	in	2014

With projected visits of 6.7 million in 
2017, Dubai Parks and Resorts is just 
beginning to achieve its potential.
Source: teA/AeCom 2014 theme Index and museum 
Index: the Global Attractions Attendance Report

	90	m
Passenger numbers to Dubai 
International Airport are expected  
to	reach	90	million	in	2018

Passenger numbers have grown from 37 
million in 2008 to 66 million in 2013. In 
2014, Dubai International Airport overtook 
Heathrow as the world's busiest airport.  
Source: Airports Council International
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Supported by favourable macroeconomic factors
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TOP 5
Dubai	ranked	among	the	top	five	
fastest-growing	economies	in	2014	

Middle East tourism is expected  
to triple by 2030, and Dubai will be  
a major beneficiary. 
Source: Brookings Global metromonitor

Source: DtCm and SCAD

*Source: middle east Council of Shopping Centres

  Dubai        Abu Dhabi
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 Expo 2020
The development will capitalise  
on regional catalyst events such  
as Expo 2020 in Dubai and the 2022 
Football World Cup to be staged  
in neighbouring Qatar. 

rising tourism 
In may 2013, the Ruler of Dubai 
announced Dubai’s tourism Vision 2020, 
which targets a doubling of annual 
tourist visits to Dubai, from 10 million  
in 2012 to 20 million by 2020, and a 
trebling of the annual contribution 
made by tourism to Dubai’s economy 
between 2012 and 2020. 

According to DtCm, the target of 20 
million visitors will be achieved through 
increasing the existing market share of 
the outbound tourism of all source 
markets and, in particular, by increasing 
awareness and consideration to visit in a 
number of potentially large markets such 
as latin America, China, and the emerging 
economies of Africa, as well as increasing 
the number of repeat visits in more 
traditional markets such as other GCC 
countries, europe, Russia, and South Asia.

We believe that Dubai parks and 
Resorts will be a key factor that will 
both support and benefit from Dubai’s 
tourism Vision 2020.

Having been awarded the rights to host 
the prestigious expo 2020 event, Dubai 
is about to enter a new phase of tourism 
growth. And Dubai parks and Resorts 
will be a central component – for expo 
2020 and beyond. 

our targeted growth strategy will 
further expand the development’s 
competitive position, focusing in  
the short-term on visitor base and 
admission pricing, in-park per capita 
spend, and synergies with other  
‘Dubai Inc’ entities. 

In the longer term, the development will 
capitalise on regional catalyst events 
such as expo 2020 in Dubai and the 
2022 Football World Cup to be staged  
in neighbouring Qatar. 

Further development of the destination 
management platform will take place  
in conjunction with expansion of the 
theme park offering. 

the investment case Continued

UAE theme park addressable market  
(millions of potential visitors)

CAGR: 8.6%
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middle east tourism growth expected to outperform other regions

Projected world tourism growth
Visitors (m)

2013 2030E“2030 tourist multiple"= 2030 visitors/2013 visitors

Middle East 2.9x 52 149

Africa 2.4x 56 134

Asia Pacific 2.2x 248 538

Americas 1.5x 169 248

Europe 1.3x 563 744

Source: 2014 Dubai parks and Resorts Feasibility Study

Source: un tourism Highlights Report 2014
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Creating a tourism  
magnet that will  
Draw millions
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business strategy
Dubai parks and Resorts’ business 
strategy is to capitalise on the untapped 
theme park market in the region, which 
is supported by a growing tourism 
industry in the middle east. It is our 
ambition to create the world’s next 
great leisure and entertainment 
destination that can support and 
benefit from the Dubai tourism Vision 
2020, which seeks to increase Dubai’s 
annual visitor numbers to 20 million  
and increase the economic contribution 
of the tourism sector to the uAe’s GDp.

revenue drivers
We expect that Dubai parks and Resorts 
will, when operational, generate a range 
of revenue streams. We project that 
close to 75 percent of theme park 
revenue will be driven by admission 
fees, the remaining being driven by non- 
ticket revenue sources such as retail, 
food and beverage, midway games and 
midway photography.

our lapita™ Hotel will principally 
generate revenue from room rates,  
with food and beverage also forming a 
significant, but smaller, income stream. 
In Riverland™ Dubai, our main source of 
revenue is expected to be lease income 
as we anticipate that we will mainly act 
as a landlord, although we may choose 
to operate some outlets directly at any 
time. projected revenue in the first  
full year of operation is estimated at 
AeD 2.4 billion and positive net income 
is forecast for the second year with an 
estimated eBItDA margin of 26.3 percent.

Destination management
We have established a Destination 
management business group which  
we expect will manage the front-facing 
sales, marketing, packaging, and 
sponsorship designed to enhance 
revenue by marketing Dubai parks  
and Resorts as an integrated multiple-
offering theme park destination. 

the core function of the Destination 
management group will involve creating 
multi-asset packages such as multiple 
theme park entry tickets and combined 
hotel/theme park packages. they will also 
seek to bundle park entry tickets with 
third parties such as hotels, and will aim to 
build VIp and other specialised packages. 

Destination marketing will manage our 
relationships with the Dubai government 
bodies who market the emirate as a 
tourist destination. We will co-ordinate 
annual plans for local, international and 
event marketing and seek to maximise 
cross-asset marketing campaigns. the 
team will also co-ordinate with each  
of the theme parks in relation to their 
pricing and will approve any discounts 
proposed by individual parks.

We expect that our principal distribution 
channels will comprise tour operators 
(particularly for the tourist market) as well 
as online sales (which we expect will be 
the principal channel for the local market). 

Revenue by entity (AED millions)
Visits and revenue for Bollywood parks™ Dubai and leGolAnD® Dubai include Rajmahal theatre and leGolAnD® Water park respectively

2017F 1,047 551 440 220 136 2,447

2018F 1,192 619 479 251 153 2,754

2019F 1,337 697 540 278 172 3,085

54

62

64

  motiongate™ Dubai        LEGOLAND® Dubai        Bollywood Parks™1 Dubai        Lapita™ Hotel        Destination Management        Riverland™ Dubai

Admission revenue: AED 1,957 million Theme park revenue: AED 2,573 million

2012
Dubai Parks and 
Resorts project  
is announced

2013
Concept, design, 
and planning are 
well under way

2013
Site work begins 
with official 
ground-breaking 
ceremony

2014
Board of Directors 
formally 
constituted

2014
Agreements were signed with  
Emirates Airline and Etisalat  
for cooperation on marketing  
and smart park

Corporate and operational review Continued

Source: 2014 Dubai parks and Resorts Feasibility Study. Due to rounding, numbers presented may not add up precisely to the totals provided  
and percentages may not precisely reflect the absolute figures. 

CAGR: 12.3%
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our attendance at travel and trade 
shows is a key part of our strategy to 
build up a strong distribution network 
for international visitors to Dubai parks 
and Resorts.

While our operators will principally  
be responsible for individual asset 
sponsorship programmes of their 
businesses, the Destination 
management team will initiate and 
secure cross-asset sponsorships as  
well as retail, dining and entertainment 
sponsorships. It will also co-ordinate 
asset-level sponsorship initiatives  
to ensure that these are consistent  
with the overall destination strategy.

mitigating the impact of seasonality
Given the hot and humid summer 
months in the uAe, particularly in July 
and August, our masterplan for Dubai 
parks and Resorts includes an 
integrated cooling strategy, which aims 
to support visit numbers regardless of 
weather conditions. 

the master plan includes a number  
of indoor attractions at each theme  
park as well as 30 minutes of air-
conditioned queuing.

In addition, the architecture and 
landscaping of the destination 
emphasises shading. We have also 
incorporated additional cooling 
technology, such as fans and misting 
fans, in the designs. We also expect to 
adjust the opening hours of Dubai parks 
and Resorts throughout the year to 
avoid peak temperatures and to take 
account of other cultural and religious 
events, such as the holy month of 
Ramadan, holiday periods such as the 
eid breaks, and periods of major tourist 
activity, such as shopping festivals  
and major sporting attractions.

third-party experts
effective management of the design 
process includes thorough reviews and 
input at every stage, with more than  
30 external third-party experts involved 
in constant testing and checking.  

A third-party safety management firm 
is also contracted as further back-up, 
reflecting Dubai parks and Resorts’ 
commitment to taking every precaution 
to ensure that every facet of the 
development passes the demanding 
standards that are applied and expected.

the standardised rides and attractions, 
with customised thematic adaption to 
the Dubai parks and Resorts concepts, 
are being engineered and manufactured 
by world-class theme park vendors. 
tried and tested technologies underpin 
their performance and reliability, with 
reputed show and ride vendors appointed 
after rigorous pre-qualification 
assessment for approved tendering.

Development of a comprehensive  
‘risk register’ is another vital tool in 
managing the multiplicity of different 
risks inherent in the construction  
and operation of the project. In total, 
best practice applies at every stage  
of training, safety, monitoring, and 
maintenance procedures.

Vision
To be the premier provider of world-  
class leisure and entertainment 
attractions, globally confirming 
Dubai’s status as a leading year- 
round international tourism hub.

2015
Project infrastructure expected to be 
completed by the end of the year

2015
Corporate headquarters move  
to DPR site

Mission
To be one of the world’s leading 
providers of distinctly different 
entertainment offerings, with  
a view to delivering a unique 
experience to all visitors and long- 
term value to all stakeholders.

Goals
 Build a unique entertainment 
destination, featuring world- 
class IPs and best-in-class  
family attractions, theme parks, 
entertainment, and hospitality.

 Create value for all stakeholders 
through long-term sustainable 
growth and performance.

 Make a significant contribution  
to Dubai’s status as a leading 
international leisure and tourism hub.

2014
IPO and stock market listing 
successfully completed
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Key 2014 announcements
February: Ground work  
commenced on site
September:	Meraas unveiled the  
plans for Dubai Parks and Resorts
November: Parques Reunidos Servicios 
Centrales appointed operator for 
motiongate™ Dubai and Bollywood 
Parks™ Dubai
November: Memorandum  
of understanding signed with  
Emirates Airline
November: Dubai Parks and Resorts 
announced the intention to launch  
an Initial Public Offering
November: Secured AED 4.2 billion 
syndicated finance facility
November:	Partnership with  
Etisalat announced
November:	Qualified institutional 
tranche of IPO closed
December: UAE tranche of IPO closed
December: Constitutive General 
Assembly held
December: Dubai Parks and Resorts 
lists on the Dubai Financial Market

Key agreements
Significant achievements in 2014 
included the execution of an MOU  
with Etisalat, the UAE’s leading 
telecommunications services provider, 
for overall IT strategy and ‘smart’ 
technology that will create a seamless 
digital experience for visitors to the 
Dubai Parks and Resorts destination,  
where wireless communication – 
internally and externally – will be the 
norm across the entire site.

A similar agreement with Emirates 
Airline covers the exchange of 
knowledge and expertise in marketing 
co-ordination and destination 
management, capitalising on the 
airline’s expertise as an award-winning 
global connector of people and 
economies, allied to Dubai Parks  
and Resorts’ own extensive resources  
in this specialist area.

Among e-commerce initiatives under 
way is a dedicated booking facility for 
the destination – and everything from 
mobile phone applications to ERP 
systems. All the latest technology  
is being incorporated so that the 
development will be ‘future proof’ 
against high-tech advances.

Focus for 2015
Corporate focus in 2015 will be on 
growing the Dubai Parks and Resorts 
team to become over 300 strong,  
and moving to the new headquarters  
on site. 

We will also focus on signing 
agreements with international leisure 
and entertainment providers who  
can provide complementary services  
to our visitors by further enhancing  
our attractions, or with entities that  
can help drive revenues through 
sponsorship deals or other revenue-
generating agreements.

In 2015 we plan on signing a number  
of strategic deals, such as our first 
revenue-generating deal with Picsolve 
International, one of the world’s leading 
image solutions providers. We are also 
partnering with Wizcraft International 
Entertainments, India’s leading 
communications and entertainment 
company, to bring a Broadway-styled 
Bollywood show to the Rajmahal 
Theatre, and have an agreement with 
dnata, the largest air travel service 
provider in the Middle East, to 
collaborate on distribution and sales.

Our partnership with marketing guru 
Norman Elder, through Norman J. T. 
Elder & Associates, will bring us key 
theme park marketing knowledge.  
It will also launch a Corporate Marketing 
Partnership programme that is a 
multidimensional branding platform,  
to seek out global, regional, and local 
sponsorship partners.

Destination management, park 
operations, and retail and hospitality
Primary objectives for Destination 
Management, Parks Operation, and 
Retail and Hospitality are set to ensure 
that once the resort opens, guests will 
have a seamless experience. 

Corporate and operational review Continued

 10,000
There will be close to 50 
contractors on site and a total 
workforce of about 10,000 when 
construction is at its peak. 
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With 22 months to go from the end  
of 2014 until our scheduled opening,  
our team is focused on key operational 
achievements that will set the stage  
for next year’s milestones.

Park Operations will be focused  
on integrating the technical and 
operational standard operating 
procedures for all of the parks and the 
training manuals for the operational 
staff. Robust policies, procedures,  
and processes ensure safety and 
security. All these procedures are 
expected to be completed by the end  
of the year. While some of our IPs have 
existing merchandise, most of the  
IPs are new to theme parks and so  
we aim to achieve completion of our  
supply chain strategy, finalise retail 
merchandising designs, and begin 
spending on procurement for retail 
before the end of the year. 

In addition to attracting resort-wide 
sponsorship deals, Destination 
Management will be focused on 
developing our packages including  
VIP programmes. As we near our 
opening date, we will start finalising 
ticket prices in line with regional  
and international pricing standards.

Retail and Hospitality are currently 
focused on implementing a lease 
process for Riverland™ Dubai and aim  
to sign leasing/tenancy contracts for  
75 percent of the available retail, dining,  
and entertainment space over the 
course of 2015.

Critical construction dates
More than 30 ‘critical dates’ have been 
set in the countdown to official opening 
in October, 2016. Each marks a vital 
milestone in the race against time, from 
creating dust-free environments for 
control-rooms and servers to installing 
and commissioning air-conditioning, 
power, water, and hydraulics.

The project management team has set 
its own advanced deadlines for achieving 
crucial dates and passing development 
milestones. The rationale is to create  
a realistic buffer between the projected 
dates for handover to operators and  
the official opening, so that any 
contingencies arising can be managed 
without seriously affecting the 
scheduled timeline and critical path.

This objective is reinforced by the skills 
and experience of the team and their 
record of achieving on-time delivery. 
And with world-class operators, 
business partners, vendors, suppliers, 
and contractors all working cohesively 
together, Dubai Parks and Resorts is  
on course to deliver on time.

Project management objectives are  
to achieve 95 percent completion of 
show production, 72 percent completion 
of facilities construction, 65 percent 
completion of infrastructure construction 
including access bridges on Sheikh 
Zayed Road and the area development, 
and 100 percent completion of all 
underground utilities resort-wide.

Completing the substation making 
power available is an important 
milestone which will allow us to  
start testing rides and electric loads. 

The district cooling plant along with the 
substation are scheduled for completion 
before the end of the year.

Financially we aim to have finalised our 
procurement by the end of the year, with 
cumulative contracts awarded reaching 
AED 7.5 billion and cumulative project 
expenditure rising to AED 5.9 billion.

united by a common goal
In order to focus the organisation’s 
efforts we have set our business 
strategy as ‘The One Thing’, which  
is a single overarching and focused  
goal to achieve Dubai Parks and 
Resorts’ strategic business objective. 

‘The One Thing’ motto defines the 
primary strategic theme – the singular 
goal of being on budget and completely 
ready for official opening in October, 
2016. From executive management  
to junior employees, from partners to 
contractors and suppliers, their role  
in The One Thing is clearly defined – 
each aware of individual responsibilities 
and motivated to play their part in 
achieving the common objective.

In the words of HE Abdulla Al Habbai, 
Chairman of Dubai Parks and Resorts:

‘‘The leadership and vision of the UAE 
government has always been a source 
of inspiration, and Dubai Parks and 
Resorts is a tangible result of that 
vision. As we advance towards 
completion I know it will remain a 
source of great pride for all of us who 
have been involved in its concept and 
execution – as it will for the entire 
population of Dubai and the UAE.’’

the region’s largest  
leisure and entertainment 
destination with a budget 
of aeD 10.5 billion

‘The One Thing’ is a single 
overarching and focused 
goal to achieve Dubai Parks 
and Resorts’ strategic 
business objectives. 
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 27 attractions
The theme park will host five zones  
with a total of 27 rides and attractions,  
as well as vibrant retail, dining, and 
entertainment options across all areas.

A cinematic ride of sensations, 
fascination and adventure – 
motiongate™	Dubai	will	welcome	movie	
lovers from all over the globe to a 
journey	into	the	fantasy	world	of	films.	
Captivating stories and adventures 
with favourite animated characters 
from	Hollywood	create	unique,	
high-value entertainment with the 
latest-in-technology attractions and 
new-generation rides – recreating  
the thrill that only motion pictures  
can deliver.

motiongate™ Dubai will initially cover 
about 1.9 million sq ft on a total site of 
4.0 million sq ft and is expected to draw 
about three million visits every year.  
the theme park will host five zones  
with a total of 27 rides and attractions, 
as well as vibrant retail, dining, and 
entertainment options across all areas.

the Hollywood-inspired theme park will 
provide the best in branded entertainment 
from three of the largest and most 
successful motion picture studios in 
Hollywood – DreamWorks Animation, Sony 
pictures Studios, and lionsgate – serving 
up a mesmerising world of innovation and 
creative storytelling.

Attractions in the five themed zones – 
Studio Central, lionsgate, DreamWorks, 
Smurfs Village, and Sony pictures 
Studios – will include multi-media,  
3D motion simulator, rollercoasters, drop 
tower, and many other rides, as well as 
child-oriented features, appealing to a 
very wide demographic segment from 
families to teenagers, young adults, 
couples, and thrill seekers. 

the lionsgate area will include state- 
of-the art rides inspired by the Hunger 
Games and a live stage show based  
on the Step up franchise.

the DreamWorks building alone is big 
enough to accommodate five A380 
airliners and will host rides and 
attractions inspired by Shrek, Kung Fu 
panda, madagascar, and How to train 
Your Dragon.

the Sony pictures Studios and Smurfs 
Village will contain 12 themed rides  
and attractions inspired by popular 
cinematic releases such as Cloudy  
with a Chance of meatballs, Hotel 
transylvania, Ghostbusters, the Green 
Hornet, underworld, Zombieland, and  
of course the world’s favourite little  
blue characters, the Smurfs. 

the park will be largely indoors using 
great sound stages and intellectual 
properties from favourite Hollywood 
movies. Research indicates that visitors 
will spend an average of 6.5 hours  
in motiongate™ Dubai. 

The Hollywood-inspired theme park 
will provide the best in branded 
entertainment from three of the 
largest and most successful motion 
picture studios in Hollywood – 
DreamWorks Animation, Sony 
Pictures Studios, and Lionsgate.

 4.0 m sq ft
motiongate™ Dubai will initially 
cover about 1.9 million sq ft on  
a total site of 4.0 million sq ft. 

Corporate and operational review Continued
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 2.1 m sq ft
Bollywood Parks™ Dubai will cover about  
2.1 million sq ft. The destination has been 
developed in partnership with Mumbai’s  
major film studios.

Bollywood	comes	to	life	for	the	first	
time	in	the	Middle	East	at	Bollywood	
Parks™	Dubai,	showcasing	the	
authentic Indian movie experience in 
an interactive format that celebrates 
the vibrancy of Mumbai’s famous  
film	industry.

Covering about 1.7 million sq ft on a total 
site of 2.1 million sq ft, Bollywood parks™ 
Dubai will host 16 rides and attractions 
within five movie-themed areas. Content 
has been developed in partnership with 
mumbai’s major film studios and will be 
delivered in five themed areas:

• Bollywood Boulevard
• Mumbai Chowk
• Rustic Ravine
• Bollywood Film Studios and Hall of Heroes
• Regal Plaza 

the full-scale Broadway-inspired Rajmahal 
theatre will host a Bollywood-themed 
musical – the first of its kind in the region.

park guests kick-off their experience in 
Bollywood Boulevard at the entrance to 
the theme park, where live entertainment 
will feature dance performances, character 
interactions, and street theatre. 

Featured movies will include blockbuster 
hits such as Rock on!!, Don, Dabangg, 
lagaan, Sholay, Zindagi na milegi Dobara, 
Krrish, Ra one and mughal-e-Azam. 

the connection between the uAe and 
Bollywood is very strong, forged by a 
large expat population from the sub- 
continent and the appeal of Hindi movies 
to Arab viewers. 

the cultural impact and appeal of 
Bollywood is also universal, with a  
fan base of more than three billion. 
Bollywood parks™ Dubai will therefore 
draw global visitors as well as those 
from the primary catchment area. 

the 16 rides and attractions include live 
shows and thrilling family- and child-
oriented rides.

Bollywood parks™ Dubai will appeal 
primarily to the untapped Central Asian 
demographic, capitalising on Bollywood’s 
underutilised intellectual properties 
with robust site-wide entertainment to 
keep the guests energised and engaged 
throughout the length of their stay. 
Visitors will live, learn, and absorb the 
quaint charm of classic blockbusters. 

 16 attractions
The theme park will host five zones with  
a total of 16 rides and attractions.
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As	the	first	LEGOLAND®	theme	park	 
in the Middle East and the seventh 
worldwide,	LEGOLAND	Dubai	will	bring	
the well-known brick to life in a unique 
interactive	world	specifically	designed	
for	families	with	children	aged	2-12,	
encouraging them to stretch their 
imaginations and their skills as the 
‘heroes’ in a fun day spent together 
with friends and family.

leGolAnD Dubai will include more  
than 40 interactive rides, shows and 
attractions – all set in six themed areas 
featuring more than 15,000 leGo® 
models made from 60 million bricks.

the themed zones are leGo City, 
Adventure, leGo Kingdom, Imagination, 
Factory, and miniland. the 40 attractions 
include building experience, roller-
coasters, family and child-oriented rides 
and play areas. together, they will create 
the unforgettable leGolAnD experience 
of interactivity, imagination, family fun, 
and quality.

the leGo concept is already very popular 
in the middle east but the unique appeal 
of leGolAnD for families with children 
aged 2-12 is universal, making it a 
must-do visit not just for local visitors 
from Dubai and neighbouring middle 
eastern countries, but for tourists from 
all over the world, adding a whole new 
dimension to Dubai’s leisure scene.

education is an important aspect  
of leGolAnD, engaging children by 
using fun activities such as building 
interactive musical instruments like 
musical fountains and the Aquatune 
hydraulophone – an underwater  
pipe organ in the shape of a giant  
leGo block; and ‘schools’ for driving, 
boating, and flying. 

the park’s attractions develop popular  
leGo themes such as Dragon Coaster, 
loosely based on the Knights’ Kingdom 
leGo sets.

 40 attractions
Education is an important aspect of 
LEGOLAND, engaging children by using 
fun learning activities with LEGO bricks 
such as building dams and interactive 
musical instruments, and providing 
‘schools’ for driving, boating, and flying. 

 15,000 models
LEGOLAND Dubai will include more than 40 
interactive rides, shows and attractions – all set  
in six themed areas featuring more than 15,000 
LEGO models made from 60 million bricks.

Corporate and operational review Continued
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LEGOLAND Water Park rides 
cater for all age groups, 
from toddlers upwards.

The	LEGOLAND®	Water	Park	will	be	an	
integral	part	of	LEGOLAND	Dubai,	but	
offering its own attractions including  
a wave pool, and a river ride where 
visitors can build their own rafts. 

At the interactive Imagination Station, 
children can build bridges, dams, and cities 
and test their designs against the flow 
of water. With 20 attractions of its own, 
leGolAnD Water park will itself be a 
highly appealing destination.

Attractions cater for all age groups,  
from toddlers upwards. under-fives 
have a water play area with shorter 
slides and interactive, larger-than-life 
Duplo® creatures. 

Families can imagine, design, and build 
their own unique leGo® vessel and  
set afloat on a maiden voyage along  
a lazy river, set among leGo friends, 
flowering vegetation, and palm trees. 

From the highest point of the water 
park, three unique slides splash out  
in the pool 60 feet below. 

the wave pool is perfectly sized, with 
waves just big enough for all ages – or 
for families to simply cool off and relax. 

 20 attractions
With 20 attractions of its own, 
LEGOLAND Water Park will itself  
be a highly appealing destination.

From the highest point of  
the water park, three unique 
slides splash out in the pool  
60 feet below. 

leGo, the leGo logo, the Brick and Knob configurations, Duplo and leGolAnD are trademarks of the leGo Group. ©2015 the leGo Group. leGolAnD is a part of merlin entertainments plc.
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 503 keys
With 500 rooms and three luxury villas, the four- 
star Lapita™ Hotel at Dubai Parks and Resorts  
will provide a complete destination experience  
for visitors who choose to stay on site, and a 
distinctively different getaway for Dubai residents. 

A Polynesian-themed family hotel, 
Lapita™	Hotel	will	be	a	vital	component	
of	Dubai	Parks	and	Resorts.	The	503- 
key hotel will be part of the Autograph 
Collection, an exclusive ensemble of 
independent luxury hotels within the 
Marriott International brand portfolio. 

lapita™ Hotel takes its name from the 
prehistoric pacific ocean people who 
were considered nautical experts and 
ancestors of the polynesian race. Drawing 
inspiration from the exotic polynesian 
tropical landscapes, lapita™ Hotel will 
feature a dramatic façade and lush 
settings that fuel the imagination.

From the property’s expansive pathways 
sprinkled with the vivid colours of 
polynesian flora, the brand experience 
continues with lagoon-style pools, 
themed activities, dining options, and 
the guest rooms and three adjacent 
villas where the comfort and décor will 
ensure an unforgettable stay. 

An in-house entertainment component 
will provide themed activities designed 
to offer endless surprises to children 
and the young at heart. lapita™ Hotel 
will also feature relaxation zones to 
provide unparalleled tranquillity.

Warm ambient lighting and modernised 
polynesian motifs will take visitors on 
an exciting culinary journey at signature 
dining restaurants. And a rooftop area 
that draws inspiration from the rhythm 
of a tropical rain forest creates a refuge 
to share good times with family and 
friends, where everyone can unwind  
and let the world stand still. 

other facilities include a kids’ club, 
gymnasium, and business centre. 

the four-star hotel will appeal to leisure 
travellers to Dubai and visitors to Dubai 
parks and Resorts who prefer to stay 
on-site and experience the destination’s 
complete offering. 

 

Lagoon-style pools add splendour 
and serenity. Savour the aroma of 
delicious cuisine and share good 
times with family and friends in  
a cosy and fun setting. Take refuge  
at the rooftop bar that immerses 
you and draws inspiration from  
the rhythm of a tropical rain forest. 
Unwind and let the world stand still 
at the Spa.

Corporate and operational review Continued
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Riverland™	Dubai,	the	grand	entrance	
plaza	to	Dubai	Parks	and	Resorts,	will	
interconnect the three theme parks  
of the mega leisure and entertainment 
destination, serving as a meeting  
point for visitors to the parks and 
guests	arriving	at	Lapita™	Hotel,	the	
Polynesian-themed family hotel. 

Visitors will time-travel to old-world 
France and soak in the historic 
architecture of europe in the late 17th 
century. towers, turrets, and water 
wheels enchant the eye, while street 
performances and outdoor dining and 
meandering alleyways create a magic 
carpet to a different world. Industrial 
europe at the turn of the 19th and 20th 
centuries is a complementary cluster. 

physically adjacent, but advancing to  
the 20th century, the Raj era of India  
is conjured up in all its dazzling senses. 
the large elephant adorning India Gate 
sets the scene as the flavours of the 
sub-continent come alive through live 
performances of music and dance.

the most recent theme, and for many  
a very nostalgic one, captures the heady 
days of America of the 1950s – complete 
with tail-finned cars, neon lights, juke- 
boxes and jive. 

Visitors will relive the thrill of early  
los Angeles and las Vegas and enjoy 
walking through an urban street 
bustling with excitement from jugglers 
to live entertainers. 

Riverland™ Dubai will have more than 
220,000 sq ft of leasable space, with 
more than 50 stores ranging in size 
from 1,000 sq ft to 25,000 sq ft, and  
food and beverage outlets accounting 
for 70 percent of the mix. 

the three open-air event spaces will 
host unique events and entertainment 
with space for 300 to 3,000 people.

 220,000	sq ft
Riverland™ Dubai will have about 220,000 sq ft  
of leasable space occupied by more than 50 food  
and beverage outlets and shops.

Riverland™ Dubai lives up to 
expectations by creating a journey 
through time and four different 
eras: medieval France, industrial 
Europe, colonial India, and 
America of the 1950s.
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Corporate governance

Dubai Parks and Resorts is committed to standards of corporate governance that  
are in line with international best practice, as well as following the directives of the  
Dubai Financial Markets and the Emirates Securities and Commodities Authority. 

HE Abdulla Al Habbai
Chairman, Non-Executive Director

• Group Chairman of Meraas Holding
•  Chief Executive Officer of the Engineer’s 

Office since 2005 
•  Chairman of Meraas Investments, 

Industrial and Investment Lands 
Committee, and Zabeel Investments

•  Serves on the Boards of Noor Bank and 
Sheikh Mohammed Bin Rashid Housing 
Program, among others

•  Holds a master’s degree in Cadastral & 
Land Information Management from the 
University of East London

Raed Al Nuaimi
Chief Executive Officer, Executive Director

•  Raed Al Nuaimi is the Chief Executive 
Officer of Dubai Parks and Resorts

•  Previously, he was the Chief Leisure and 
Entertainment Officer at Meraas Holding

•  Has held senior management roles  
over a 10-year period with companies 
such as Tatweer, Dubailand and Dubai 
Properties Group

•  Holds a bachelor’s degree in Business 
Administration from Ashford University, 
UK, and is a member of the Chartered 
Institute of Personnel and Development

Fahad Kazim
Non-Executive Director

•  Chief Commercial Officer at Meraas Holding
•  Also oversees Meraas Holding’s retail 

interests, including its recently launched 
Food & Beverage division

•  Has previously worked at PwC in the 
audit and transaction services divisions

•  Serves on several boards, including Dubai 
Hills LLC and Dubai Inn LLC

•  Holds a bachelor’s degree in Accounting 
from Concordia University, Canada, and  
is a qualified Certified Public Accountant

Board of Directors 

Abdul Wahab Al-Halabi
Non-Executive Director

•  Group Chief Investment Officer at Meraas 
Holding with more than 18 years of 
experience in the real estate sector

•  Serves on a number of boards including 
the supervisory board of Emirates REIT

•  Previously held positions include partner 
at KPMG, Chief Executive Officer of Dubai 
Properties Group

•  Holds a bachelor’s degree in Economics 
from the London School of Economics and 
an Executive MBA from Ecole Nationale 
des Ponts et Chaussées

Dennis C. Gilbert
Independent Non-Executive Director

•  More than 45 years of experience in the 
theme park and attraction business

•  Has held various senior management 
positions at Sea World of Ohio,  
Resorts World Sentosa (Singapore), 
Stone Mountain Park (Atlanta), Ocean 
Embassy, and three Anheuser Busch 
Adventure Parks

•  Chairman of the Board and majority 
stockholder for Gilberts of Atlanta,  
a restaurant company operating as  
a ‘Wendy’s’ franchisee 

Steven D. Shaiken
Independent Non-Executive Director

•  Provides consulting services to major 
companies in the travel and leisure industry 
including Disney, Universal, Aramark etc.

•  More than 40 years of experience in the 
destination branded entertainment arena

•  Previously Executive Managing Director 
at Adventure World (Warsaw)

•  Has previously worked with industry majors 
such as the Royal Caribbean International, 
Seaworld Parks & Entertainment, Disney 
Cruise Lines, Starwood, and Hilton hotel 
chains, among others

Board of Directors by type Shareholder structure (as at 31 Dec 2014)Board of Directors by nationality

  Meraas – 60%
  Institutional – 26%
  Retail – 14%

  Non-Executive – 3 
  Executive – 1
  Independent – 2

  UAE National – 4
  USA National – 2
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The Board of Directors complies and 
intends to continue complying with  
the corporate governance requirements 
applicable to joint stock companies 
listed on the DFM, as set out in the 
Governance Rules and Corporate 
Discipline Standards issued on 29 
October 2009 pursuant to Ministerial 
Decree No 518 (Governance Rules). 

As envisaged by these rules, the Board has 
established two permanent committees: 
an Audit Committee and a Nomination  
and Remuneration Committee. 

Corporate Governance Committees
Audit Committee
The Audit Committee meets four times 
a year and assists the Board in discharging 
its responsibilities with regard to financial 
reporting and external and internal audits 
and controls, including reviewing and 
monitoring the integrity of annual and 
interim financial statements, reviewing 
and monitoring the extent of non-audit 
work undertaken by external auditors, 
advising on the appointment of external 
auditors, overseeing our relationship 
with our external auditors, reviewing 
the effectiveness of the external audit 
process, and reviewing the effectiveness 
of the internal control review function. 
The ultimate responsibility for reviewing 
and approving the annual report and 
accounts remains with the Board.

The Audit Committee has taken steps 
to ensure that the Company’s auditors 
are independent of the Company as 
required by the Governance Rules, and 
has obtained written confirmation  
from the Company’s auditors that they 
comply with guidelines on independence 
issued by the relevant accountancy  
and auditing bodies.

Current members of the Audit  
Committee are: 

•  Steven D. Shaiken (Chairman and 
Independent Non-Executive Director) 

•  Dennis C. Gilbert (Independent 
Non-Executive Director)

•  Fahad Kazim (Non-Executive Director).

Nomination and  
Remuneration Committee
The Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee meets four times a year  
and assists the Board in discharging  
its responsibilities relating to the 
composition and make-up of the Board 
and any Committees of the Board. 

It is responsible for evaluating the 
balance of skills, knowledge, and 
experience, and the size, structure  
and composition of the Board  
and committees of the Board and,  
in particular, for monitoring the 
independent status of the Independent 
Non-Executive Directors. It is also 
responsible for periodically reviewing 
the Board’s structure and identifying 
potential candidates to be appointed  
as Directors or Committee Members  
as the need may arise.

The Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee also assists the Board  
in determining its responsibilities  
in relation to remuneration, including 
making recommendations to the Board 
on the Company’s policy on executive 
remuneration, setting the over-arching 
principles, parameters, and governance 
framework of remuneration policy  
and determining the individual 
remuneration and benefits package  
of each of the Company’s Executive 
Directors and senior management.

Current members of the Nomination  
and Remuneration Committee are: 

•  Dennis C. Gilbert (Chairman and 
Independent Non-Executive Director) 

•  Steven D. Shaiken (Independent 
Non-Executive Director)

•  Abdul Wahab Al-Halabi  
(Non-Executive Director).

Constitutive General Assembly  
held on December 8, 2014
The Company’s Constitutive General 
Assembly was held in Dubai on the  
8 December 2014. The meeting was 
attended by all the Board of Directors 
and chaired by HE Abdulla Al Habbai. 

During the meeting the attendees ratified 
the reports of the founders’ committee, 
the Memorandum of Association and 
Articles of Association of the Company, as 
well as the reports submitted by Deloitte 
& Touche Middle East. 

Mr Anis Sadek of Deloitte & Touche 
Middle East provided a report on the 
pre-incorporation statement of issue 
expenses until 7 December 2014. The 
issue expenses are AED 59,482,401 at 
the rate of 0.94 percent of the nominal 
value of the shares.

The appointment of the first Board of 
Directors for a term of three years was 
also approved. The same meeting 
ratified the appointment of Deloitte  
& Touche Middle East as auditor of  
the Company until 31 December 2015 
(the first financial year of operation  
for the Company), and determined the 
audit fees for the period.
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The Shareholders
Dubai Parks and Resorts PJSC
Dubai
United Arab Emirates

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Dubai Parks and Resorts PJSC, Dubai, United Arab Emirates 
(the “Company”) and its Subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position 
as at 31 December 2014, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity 
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the 
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from 
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the 
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements 
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position  
of Dubai Parks and Resorts PJSC, Dubai, United Arab Emirates, and its Subsidiaries as at 31 December 2014 and its financial 
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Also, in our opinion, the Company has maintained proper books of accounts. The information contained in the Director’s report 
relating to the consolidated financial statements is in agreement with the books. We obtained all the information which we 
considered necessary for our audit. According to the information available to us, there were no contraventions during the year  
of the U.A.E. Federal Commercial Companies Law No. (8) of 1984 (as amended), or the Articles of Association of the Company 
which might have materially affected the financial position of the Company or its financial performance.

Anis F. Sadek
Partner
Registration No. 521
1 March 2015

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Notes
2014

AED’000
2013

AED’000

ASSETS

Property and equipment 6 1,994,295 317,216

Investment properties 7 199,596 2,629

Advances to contractors and other receivables 8 370,399 19,997

Other financial assets 9 4,150,000 –

Cash and cash equivalents 10 163,573 –

Total Assets 6,877,863 339,842

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Share capital 11 6,321,828 600

Equity issue reserve 12 3,736 –

Accumulated losses (38,326) (17,044)

Total equity 6,287,238 (16,444)

Liabilities

Due to related parties 14(c) 16,008 315,467

Trade and other payables 15 574,617 40,819

Total liabilities 590,625 356,286

Total Equity and Liabilities 6,877,863 339,842

  

Mr. Abdulwahab Al Halabi Mr. Raed Al Nuaimi Mr. Fahad Kazim
Vice Chairman Chief Executive Officer Non-Executive Director

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2014

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes
2014

AED’000
2013

AED’000

General and administrative expenses 16 (21,830) (12,816)

Marketing and selling expenses (1,149) –

Interest income 1,697 –

Loss for the year (21,282) (12,816)

Other comprehensive income – –

Total comprehensive loss for the year (21,282) (12,816)

Loss per share:

Basic and diluted loss per share (AED) 17 (0.003) (0.002)

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2014

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Share capital
AED’000

Equity issue reserve
AED’000

Accumulated losses
AED’000

Total
AED’000

Balance as at 1 January 2013 300 – (4,228) (3,928)

Additional share capital (Note 11) 300 – – 300

Total comprehensive loss for the year – – (12,816) (12,816)

Balance as at 31 December 2013 600 – (17,044) (16,444)

Share capital decrease (Note 11) (600) – – (600)

Issuance of share capital (Note 11) 6,321,828 – – 6,321,828

Net initial public offering income (Note 12) – 3,736 – 3,736

Total comprehensive loss for the year – – (21,282) (21,282)

Balance as at 31 December 2014 6,321,828 3,736 (38,326) 6,287,238

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 31 December 2014

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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2014
AED’000

2013*
AED’000

Operating activities

Loss for the year (21,282) (12,816)

Adjustments for:

 Depreciation expense 429 –

 Interest income (1,697) –

 Provision for employees’ end of service indemnity 2,440 –

 General and administrative expenses – 12,816

Operating cash flows before changes in operating assets and liabilities (20,110) –

Increase in advances to contractors and other receivables (200,211) –

Increase in trade and other payables 531,358 –

Net cash from operating activities 311,037 –

Cash flows from investing activities

Increase in other financial assets (4,150,000) –

Additions to property and equipment (959,772) –

Additions to investment properties (17,172) –

Interest received 222 –

Net cash used in investing activities (5,126,722) –

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issuance of share capital 4,544,915 –

Movement in due to related parties 579,323 –

Arrangement fees paid (148,716) –

Initial public offering income 63,218 –

Incorporation expenses paid (59,482) –

Net cash from financing activities 4,979,258 –

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Note 10) 163,573 –

Non-cash transactions:

Forgiven balances due to related parties through issuance of share capital (Note 11) 880,674 –

Land transferred and leased to the Group through issuance of share capital (Notes 6,7 and 11) 896,238 –

Transfers of property and equipment from a related party (Note 6) (1,293) –

Reversal of share capital from prior year (Note 11) (600) –

* The Group did not hold any cash or cash equivalents as at 31 December 2013 and consequently, there are no cash flows for the Group for the year ended 
31 December 2013.

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 31 December 2014

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2014

1. General information
Dubai Parks and Resorts PJSC (the “Company” or the “Parent Company”) was originally formed as a limited liability company 
with commercial license number 673692 and was established on 11 July 2012 with share capital comprising of 300 authorized, 
issued and fully paid shares of AED 1,000 each. On 9 December 2014 approval from the Ministry of Economy was obtained, and 
the Company was converted to a Public Joint Stock Company in accordance with U.A.E. Federal Law No. 8 of 1984, as amended. 
The Company is a subsidiary of Meraas Holding (LLC) (the “Ultimate Parent Company”).

The registered address of the Company is P.O. Box 123311, Dubai, United Arab Emirates.

As at 31 December 2014, the licensed activities of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) are investment 
in commercial enterprises and management of amusement parks, investment in and management of tourist enterprises and 
sport & recreational events tickets e-trading, marketing management, facilities management services and event management.

As at 31 December 2014, the Company has not started its commercial operations and accordingly there is no operating revenue 
for the period.

The consolidated financial statements include the following subsidiaries:

Name of subsidiary
Place of 
incorporation Date of incorporation

Percentage of ownership
ActivityLegal Beneficial

Motiongate (LLC) Dubai, U.A.E. 18 March 2013 99% 100% Theme park development

Dubai Parks Destination 
Management (LLC) Dubai, U.A.E. 25 August 2014 99% 100% Theme park management

Bollywood Parks (LLC) Dubai, U.A.E. 25 August 2014 99% 100% Theme park development

Dubai Parks Hotel (LLC) Dubai, U.A.E. 25 August 2014 99% 100% Real estate development

River Park (LLC) Dubai, U.A.E. 25 August 2014 99% 100% Real estate development

LL Dubai Theme Park (LLC) Dubai, U.A.E. 7 September 2014 99% 100% Theme park development

Mgate Operations (LLC)* Dubai, U.A.E. 8 April 2013 100% 100% Facilities management

LL Dubai Operations (LLC)** Dubai, U.A.E. 14 October 2014 100% 100% Facilities management

* Subsidiary of Motiongate (LLC)
** Subsidiary of LL Dubai Theme Park (LLC)

2. Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”)
2.1 New and revised IFRS applied with no material effect on the consolidated financial statements
In the current year, the Group for the first time has applied the following new and revised IFRSs issued by the International 
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) that are mandatorily effective for an accounting period that begins on or after 1 January 2014. 
The application of these new and revised IFRS has not had any material impact on the amounts reported for the current and 
prior year but may affect the accounting for future transactions or arrangements.

•	 	Amendments	to	International	Accounting	Standard	(IAS)	32	Financial	Instruments:	Presentation	relating	to	application	
guidance on the offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities.

•	 	Amendments	to	IAS	36	Impairment	of	Assets	relating	to	recoverable	amount	disclosures.	The	amendments	restrict	the	
requirements to disclose the recoverable amount of an asset or CGU to the period in which an impairment loss has been 
recognised or reversed. They also expand and clarify the disclosure requirements applicable when an asset or CGU’s recoverable 
amount has been determined on the basis of fair value less costs of disposal.

•	 	Amendments	to	IAS	39	Financial	Instruments:	Recognition	and	Measurement	relating	to	novation	of	Derivatives	and	
Continuation of Hedge Accounting. The amendment allows the continuation of hedge accounting when a derivative is novated  
to a clearing counterparty and certain conditions are met.

Dubai Parks and Resorts     /    Annual Report 2014

37



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2014

2. Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) (continued)

2.1 New and revised IFRS applied with no material effect on the consolidated financial statements (continued)
•	 	IFRIC	21	Levies	was	developed	to	address	the	concerns	about	how	to	account	for	levies	that	are	based	on	financial	data	 

of a period that is different from that in which the activity that give rise to the payment of the levy occurs.
•	 	Amendments	to	IFRS	10	Consolidated	Financial	Statements,	IFRS	12	Disclosure	of	Interests	in	Other	Entities	and	IAS	27	

Separate Financial Statements – Guidance on Investment Entities. These amendments introduce the concept of an investment 
entity in IFRS and develop an exemption from the requirement to consolidate subsidiaries for eligible investment entities 
(such as mutual funds, unit trusts, and similar entities), instead requiring the use of the fair value to measure those investments.

2.2 New and revised standards and interpretations are in issue but not yet effective

New and revised IFRS
Effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after

Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures relating to disclosures about the  
initial application of IFRS 9. When IFRS 9  

is first applied.

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Additional hedge accounting disclosures (and consequential 
amendments) resulting from the introduction of the hedge accounting chapter in IFRS 9.

When IFRS 9  
is first applied.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (2009) issued in November 2009 introduces new requirements  
for the classification and measurement of financial assets. IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (2010) 
revised in October 2010 includes the requirements for the classification and measurement  
of financial liabilities, and carrying over the existing derecognition requirements from IAS 39 
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (2013) was revised in November 2013 to incorporate a hedge accounting 
chapter and permit the early application of the requirements for presenting in other comprehensive 
income the own credit gains or losses on financial liabilities designated under the fair value option 
without early applying the other requirements of IFRS 9.

Finalised version of IFRS 9 (IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (2014)) was issued in July 2014 
incorporating requirements for classification and measurement, impairment, general hedge 
accounting and derecognition.

IFRS 9 (2009) and IFRS 9 (2010) were superseded by IFRS 9 (2013) and IFRS 9 (2010) also superseded 
IFRS 9 (2009). IFRS 9 (2014) supersedes all previous versions of the standard. The various standards 
also permit various transitional options. Accordingly, entities can effectively choose which parts  
of IFRS 9 they apply, meaning they can choose to apply: (1) the classification and measurement 
requirements for financial assets: (2) the classification and measurement requirements for both 
financial assets and financial liabilities: (3) the classification and measurement requirements  
and the hedge accounting requirements provided that the relevant date of the initial application  
is before 1 February 2015.

1 January 2018

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

In May 2014, IFRS 15 was issued which established a single comprehensive model for entities to 
use in accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers. IFRS 15 will supersede the 
current revenue recognition guidance including IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts and 
the related interpretations when it becomes effective.

1 January 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2014

2. Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) (continued)

2.2 New and revised standards and interpretations are in issue but not yet effective (continued)

New and revised IFRS
Effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after

The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of 
promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the 
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the standard 
introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

•	 	Step	1:	Identify	the	contract(s)	with	a	customer.
•	 	Step	2:	Identify	the	performance	obligations	in	the	contract.
•	 	Step	3:	Determine	the	transaction	price.
•	 	Step	4:	Allocate	the	transaction	price	to	the	performance	obligations	in	the	contract.
•	 	Step	5:	Recognise	revenue	when	(or	as)	the	entity	satisfies	a	performance	obligation.

Under IFRS 15, an entity recognises when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when 
‘control’ of the goods or services underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred  
to the customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been added in IFRS 15 to deal with specific 
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by IFRS 15.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012 – 2014 Cycle that include amendments to IFRS 5, IFRS 7,  
IAS 19 and IAS 34.

1 January 2016

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 to clarify the acceptable methods of depreciation and amortization. 1 January 2016

Amendments to IFRS 11 to clarify accounting for acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations. 1 January 2016

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 41 require biological assets that meet the definition of a bearer 
plant to be accounted for as property, plant and equipment in accordance with IAS 16.

1 January 2016

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 clarify that the recognition of the gain or loss on the sale or 
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture depends on whether 
the assets sold or contributed constitute a business.

1 January 2016

Amendments to IAS 27 allow an entity to account for investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures 
and associates either at cost, in accordance with IAS 39/IFRS 9 or using the equity method in an 
entity’s separate financial statements.

1 January 2016

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28 clarifying certain aspects of applying the consolidation 
exception for investment entities.

1 January 2016

Amendments to IAS 1 to address perceived impediments to preparers exercising their judgment 
in presenting their financial reports.

1 January 2016

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010 – 2012 Cycle that includes amendments to IFRS 2, IFRS 3, 
IFRS 8, IFRS 13, IAS 16, IAS 38 and IAS 24.

1 July 2014

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011 – 2013 Cycle that includes amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 3, 
IFRS 13 and IAS 40.

1 July 2014

Amendments to IAS 19 Employee Benefits clarify the requirements that relate to how contributions 
from employees or third parties that are linked to service should be attributed to periods of service.

1 July 2014

Management anticipates that IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 will be adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the annual 
period beginning 1 January 2017 and 1 January 2018 respectively. The application of IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 may have impact on amounts 
reported and disclosures made in the Group’s consolidated financial statements in respect of revenue from contracts with customers 
and the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities. However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of effects 
of the application of these standards until the Group performs a detailed review.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2014

3. Significant accounting policies
Basis of preparation
During 2014, the Company legally acquired the ownership of the subsidiaries listed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements 
through assignment and transfer of shares from a related party and the Ultimate Parent Company. Before the assignment and 
transfer of shares, the subsidiaries of the Company were ultimately controlled by the Ultimate Parent Company which is consistent 
with the Group of entities combined as at 31 December 2013. Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements have been prepared 
in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements.

In the prior year, the legal entities constituting the Group for these consolidated financial statements did not constitute a legal 
group. Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2013 were prepared on a combined basis and 
therefore did not fully comply with the requirements of IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, however the consolidated 
financial statements were prepared by applying the principles underlying the consolidation process of IFRS 10.

Internal transactions within the Group have been eliminated in full on consolidation.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (‘‘IFRS’’) 
that are effective for financial year beginning on or after 1 January 2014.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared based on the following:

•	 	The	assets,	liabilities	and	the	profit	or	loss	of	the	entities	comprising	the	Group	have	been	aggregated.	All	transactions	and	
balances between entities included within consolidated financial statements have been eliminated. Transactions and balances 
with the Ultimate Parent Company and related parties under Meraas Holding (LLC) do not eliminate within the consolidated 
Group and are classified as related party transactions.

•	 	During	the	year,	certain	transfers	have	taken	place	between	the	related	parties	and	entities	within	the	Group.	Details	of	material	
transactions/transfers between the Group and the related parties are included in Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis. Historical cost is generally based on the fair 
value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services. The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below.

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company 
(its Subsidiaries) made up to 31 December each year. Control is achieved when the Company:

•	 has	power	over	the	investee;
•	 is	exposed,	or	has	rights,	to	variable	returns	from	its	involvement	with	the	investee;	and
•	 has	the	ability	to	use	its	powers	to	affect	its	returns.

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one 
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Company loses control 
of the subsidiary. Specifically, the results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated income 
statement from the date the Company gains control until the date when the Company ceases to control the subsidiary.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies used into 
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the 
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

40



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2014

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Segment information
A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged either in providing products or services (business segment), 
or in providing products or services within a particular economic environment, which is subject to risks and rewards that are 
different from those of other segments. Segment income, segment expenses and segment performance include transfers between 
business segments and between geographical segments.

Revenue recognition
Interest income
Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the 
amount of income can be measured reliably.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, 
which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s 
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Investment properties
Investment properties comprise of properties held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation, or both, (including investment 
properties constructed for such purposes). Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including related transaction 
costs, less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses in accordance with the cost model of IAS 40 
Investment Properties.

Expenditure incurred to replace a component of an item of investment properties that is accounted for separately is capitalised 
and the carrying amount of the component that is replaced is written off. Other subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when 
it increases future economic benefits of the related item of investment properties. All other expenditure is recognised in profit  
or loss as the expense is incurred.

Investment properties are derecognised upon disposal or when the investment properties are permanently withdrawn from use 
and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property is included 
in profit or loss in the period in which the property is derecognised.

Transfers are made to investment properties when, and only when, there is a change in use evidenced by the ending of owner-
occupation for a transfer from owner occupied property or commencement of an operating lease to another party for a transfer 
from inventories. Transfers are made from investment properties when, and only when, there is a change in use evidenced by 
commencement of owner-occupation for a transfer to owner occupied property or commencement of development with a view 
to sale for a transfer to inventories. Such transfers are made at the carrying value of the properties at the date of transfer.

Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards  
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as a lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another 
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed. 
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The 
aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except where another 
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Property and equipment
Property and equipment comprise of land, vehicles, IT equipment and capital work-in-progress.

All items of property and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Subsequent to recognition, property and equipment are stated 
at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any, except for capital work-in-progress. Cost includes 
expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost 
of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition for its intended 
use, and the cost of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located. Borrowing costs that 
are directly attributable to acquisition, construction or production of an asset are included in the cost of that asset.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is 
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured 
reliably. Expenditure incurred to replace a component of an item of property and equipment that is accounted for separately is 
capitalised and the carrying amount of the component that is replaced is written off. All other repairs and maintenance are charged 
to profit or loss when incurred.

Depreciation is charged so as to write-off the cost of property and equipment, other than capital work-in-progress, less their 
estimated residual value, on a straight-line basis over the expected useful lives of the assets, as follows:

Vehicles 3 – 5 years

IT Equipment 3 – 5 years

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at each year-end, with the effect of any changes 
in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than 
its estimated recoverable amount.

Fully depreciated property and equipment are retained in the consolidated financial statements until they are no longer in use 
and no further charge for depreciation is made in respect of these assets.

Capital work-in-progress
Capital work-in-progress includes properties that are being constructed or developed for future use. Cost includes pre-development 
infrastructure, construction and other related expenditure such as professional fees and engineering costs attributable to the 
project, which are capitalised during the period when activities that are necessary to make the assets ready for their intended 
use are in progress. These properties are classified as capital work-in-progress until construction or development is completed.

Direct costs from the start of the project up to completion of the project are capitalised. No depreciation is charged on capital 
work-in-progress. 

Classification of properties
Management determines at the time of acquisition or construction of the property, whether the property should be classified  
as development property, investment property or property, plant and equipment. The Group classifies a property as development 
property when the intention is to develop the property for the purpose of future sale to third parties. The Group classifies a property 
as investment property when the intention is to hold the property for rental, capital appreciation or for undetermined use. The Group 
classifies a property as property, plant and equipment when the intention is to use the property for its operations.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of tangible assets
At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any indication 
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated 
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of 
an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When 
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating 
units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation 
basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future 
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time 
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying 
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately 
in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount in excess of cost, in which case the impairment loss  
is treated as a revaluation decrease.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the 
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, so long as the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that 
would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal 
of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount in excess 
of cost, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

Foreign currency transactions
The consolidated statement of financial position is presented in the currency of the primary economic environment in which the 
Group operates (its functional currency). For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position, the financial position 
of the Group are expressed in Arab Emirates Dirhams (AED), which is the functional currency of the Group, and the presentation 
currency for the consolidated statement of financial position.

In preparing the consolidated statement of financial position, transactions in currencies other than the Group’s functional currency 
are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At reporting date, monetary items denominated 
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the reporting date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that 
are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. 
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position when the Group 
has become a party to the contracted provisions of the instrument.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity
Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the 
contractual arrangement.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. 
Equity instruments issued by the Group are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, with interest expense 
recognised on an effective yield basis.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Effective interest method
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest 
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments 
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire.

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that the Group 
will be required to settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the 
reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using 
the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, the 
receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable 
can be measured reliably.

4. Critical accounting judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty
The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the reporting 
date. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material 
adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in the future.

Critical judgment in applying the Group’s accounting policies
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management have made the following critical judgments that have 
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

Accounting for arrangement fees
The management has considered IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement in accounting for arrangement 
fees for the Group’s bank facilities. Management believes that it is probable that the bank facilities will be drawn down in the 
future and therefore, the arrangement fees are deferred as at the reporting date and will be treated as a transaction cost when 
the draw-down occurs and amortized over the period of the bank facility.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The key assumptions concerning the future and key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting period, that have 
significant risk of causing material adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year,  
are discussed below.

Impairment of property and equipment and investment properties
The carrying values of the Group’s property and equipment and investment properties are reviewed to determine whether there  
is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. Management judge 
the recoverable amount of an asset as the greater of its value in use and its fair value less cost to sell. To assess value in use, 
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using an appropriate discount rate. The key assumptions and 
estimates	used	when	calculating	the	net	present	value	of	future	cash	flows	are:	a)	future	cash	flows;	b)	timing	and	quantum	 
of	future	capital	and	maintenance	expenditures;	c)	long	term	growth	rates,	and	d)	discount	rates	to	reflect	the	risks	involved.	 
As at the reporting date, there is no indication of impairment.
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4. Critical accounting judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Estimation of useful lives of investment properties
The asset’s residual values and useful lives are reviewed at the reporting date and adjusted if appropriate, taking into account 
technology developments. Uniform depreciation rates are established based on the straight-line method which may not represent 
the actual usage of the assets. As asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s 
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

5. Segment information
An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenue and incur 
expenses. The Group determines and presents financial information as a single operating segment based on the information that 
is provided internally to corporate management for decision making.

6. Property and equipment

Land
AED’000

Vehicles
AED’000

Computer
 equipment

AED’000

Capital work-
in-progress

AED’000
Total

AED’000

Cost

As at 1 January 2013 – – – 44,016 44,016

Additional cost incurred during the year – – – 273,200 273,200

As at 31 December 2013 – – – 317,216 317,216

Additional cost incurred during the year – – – 959,772 959,772

Contribution from the Ultimate Parent Company (a) 716,443 – – – 716,443

Transfers from a related party – 321 972 – 1,293

As at 31 December 2014 716,443 321 972 1,276,988 1,994,724

Accumulated depreciation

As at 1 January 2013 – – – – –

Charge for the year – – – – –

As at 31 December 2013 – – – – –

Charge for the year – 113 316 – 429

As at 31 December 2014 – 113 316 – 429

Carrying amount

At 31 December 2014 716,443 208 656 1,276,988 1,994,295

At 31 December 2013 – – – 317,216 317,216

a)  Property and equipment relates to amusement park projects undertaken on land which the Group has the exclusive right  
to develop. On 20 October 2014, the Ultimate Parent Company transferred to the Group the title to the related plots of land 
with a fair market value of AED 716 million as assessed by the Dubai Lands Department, which was settled through the 
issuance of shares.

b)  The Group’s related parties have novated a number of contracts for the acquisition and construction of property and equipment 
which were previously entered into by related parties on behalf of the Group. The novation process for all contracts is expected 
to be completed by the end of 2015.

c) On 31 December 2014, a related party has transferred to the Group “Vehicles” and “IT Equipment” [Note 14 (e)].
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7. Investment properties

Land
AED’000

Capital work-
in-progress

AED’000
Total

AED’000

Cost

As at 1 January 2013 – – –

Additional cost incurred during the year – 2,629 2,629

As at 31 December 2013 – 2,629 2,629

Additional cost incurred during the year – 17,172 17,172

Contribution from the Ultimate Parent Company (a) 179,795 – 179,795

As at 31 December 2014 179,795 19,801 199,596

a)  The investment property project is undertaken on land which the Group has the exclusive right to develop. On 20 October 2014, 
the Ultimate Parent Company leased to the Group the related plot of land with a fair market value of AED 180 million as assessed 
by the Dubai Lands Department, which was settled through issuance of shares. The plot of land has been leased to the Group 
for 50 years, which is automatically renewable for a further 49 years at nil consideration at the end of the lease term.

b)  From 1 September 2014, the Group and its related parties have already novated a number of contracts for the acquisition and 
construction of investment properties which were previously entered into by related parties on behalf of the Group. The novation 
process for all contracts to the Group is expected to be completed by the end of 2015.

8. Advances to contractors and other receivables
2014

AED’000
2013

AED’000

Advances to contractors 220,208 19,983

Prepayments 148,716 14

Interest receivable 1,475 –

370,399 19,997

9. Other financial assets
Other financial assets include fixed deposits held by banks with maturity periods of more than three months from the dates  
of placement. These deposits earn interest rates ranging from 1% to 2% per annum.

10. Cash and cash equivalents
2014

AED’000
2013

AED’000

Cash on hand 35 –

Bank balances: 

 Call and current accounts 163,538 –

163,573 –

Call accounts earn interest up to 1% per annum.
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11. Share capital
a)  Share capital comprises 6,321,827,708 authorised, issued and fully paid up shares of AED 1 per share. A total of 4,544,915,049 

shares were issued for cash and the remaining 1,776,912,659 shares were issued to the Ultimate Parent Company for the land 
transferred and leased to the Company under a long-term renewable lease for an aggregate value of AED 896 million and for 
balances due to related parties amounting to AED 881 million. The Company is a subsidiary of the Ultimate Parent Company 
which owns 60% of the shares directly and indirectly through Meraas Leisure and Entertainment (LLC) (the “Intermediate 
Parent Company”).

b)  As at 31 December 2013, the individual share capital balances of entities within the Group have been aggregated to produce  
a combined share capital balance as at 31 December 2013.

31 December 2013

Number of shares
Amount in 

AED’000

Dubai Parks and Resorts (LLC) 300 300

Motiongate (LLC) 300 300

Mgate Opeartions (LLC) 300 300

Dubai Parks Destination Management (LLC) – –

Bollywood Parks (LLC) – –

Dubai Parks Hotel (LLC) – –

River Park (LLC) – –

LL Dubai Theme Park (LLC) – –

LL Dubai Operations (LLC) – –

900 900

Eliminations* (300) (300)

600 600

*Eliminations due to cross holding within the Group as at 31 December 2013.

12. Equity issue reserve
As at 31 December 2014

AED’000

Initial public offering income collected amounting to AED 0.01 for each share 63,218

Less: Incorporation expenses incurred (59,482)

3,736

13. Bank facilities
The Company has undrawn bank facility agreements of AED 4.2 billion as at 31 December 2014.
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14. Related party transactions
The Group enters into transactions with companies and entities that fall within the definition of a related party as contained in 
International Accounting Standard 24 Related Party Disclosures. Related parties comprise companies and entities under common 
ownership and/or common management and control, and key management personnel.

a)  The management decides on the terms and conditions of the transactions and of services received from/rendered to related 
parties as well as on other charges.

b)  In 2012, Meraas Leisure and Entertainment (LLC), intermediate parent company of Dubai Parks and Resorts PJSC obtained an 
off balance sheet trade finance facility for AED 368 million from a bank on behalf of the Group (guaranteed by the Ultimate 
Parent Company). The facility pertains to letters of credit and guarantees to be issued in favour of the various suppliers in 
respect of the import of various products related to the theme park projects. While the Group is responsible for all liabilities 
in relation to the facility, the covenants are at the Ultimate Parent Company level. As at the reporting date, AED 97 million  
of letters of credit are outstanding.

 As at 31 December 2014, the facility is secured by the following:

	 •	 Pledge	over	wakala	deposit	of	a	related	party;
	 •	 Assignment	of	existing	cash	flows	from	a	project	of	a	related	party;
	 •	 Negative	pledge	on	theme	park	project	assets;	and
	 •	 Assignment	of	all	theme	park	projects	related	guarantees	in	favour	of	the	bank.

c)  Due to related parties amounting to AED 16.01 million (2013: AED 315.47 million) represents the amounts payable to the 
Ultimate	Parent	Company	and	its	subsidiaries	in	respect	of;	i)	payments	to	contractors	and	suppliers,	and	ii)	transfer	of	assets	
to the Group [Note 14(e)].

d)  The Ultimate Parent Company has charged general and administrative expenses to the Group based on the Group’s policy  
on related party transactions (Note 16).

e) On 31 December 2014, a related party has transferred certain assets to the Group (Note 6).

15. Trade and other payables
2014

AED’000
2013

AED’000

Trade payables and accruals 541,262 40,806

Retentions payable 30,915 13

Provision for end of service benefit 2,440 –

574,617 40,819

a)  Retentions payable represent amounts withheld in accordance with the terms of the contract when progress payments  
are made to the contractors.

b)  Provision for employees’ end of service indemnity is made in accordance with the UAE labour law, and is based on current 
remuneration and cumulative years of service at the reporting date.

48



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2014

16. General and administrative expenses
2014

AED’000
2013

AED’000

Recharged expenses from a related party [Note 14(d)] 8,672 12,816

Salaries and other employee benefits 10,751 –

Professional and legal expenses 142 –

Rent 692 –

Other 1,573 –

21,830 12,816

17. Basic and diluted loss per share
(a)  Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss attributable to equity holders of the Company by the number of ordinary 

shares in issue during the year.

2014 2013

Loss attributable to equity holders of the Company (in AED’000) (20,993) (12,816)

Number of shares in issue (in ‘000)* 6,321,828 6,321,828

Basic loss per share (in AED) (0.003) (0.002)

*The denominator for the purpose of calculating basic loss per share of 2013 has been adjusted to reflect the issuance of 6.3 billion shares in 2014.

(b)  Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion  
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. As at 31 December 2014, the Company did not have such dilutive ordinary shares.  

18. Commitments and contingent liabilities
(a) Commitments
Contracted-for commitments for the acquisition of services for the development and construction of assets classified under property 
and equipment and investment properties accounts amounted to AED 3.9 billion as at 31 December 2014 (31 December 2013:  
AED 513 million).

(b) Contingent liabilities
2014

AED’000
2013

AED’000

Letters of credit 97,086 –
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19. Financial instruments
(a) Significant accounting policies
Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement 
and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset and financial liability are 
disclosed in Note 3 to the consolidated statement of financial position.

(b) Categories of financial instruments
2014

AED’000
2013

AED’000

Financial assets

Loans and receivables (including cash and cash equivalents) 4,315,048 –

Financial liabilities

At amortised cost 588,185 356,286

(c) Fair value of financial instruments
The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities at year-end approximate their carrying amounts at the reporting date.

20. Financial risk management
The Group’s financial risk management policies set out the Group’s overall business strategies and risk management philosophy. 
The Group’s overall financial risk management program seeks to minimize potential adverse effects to the financial performance 
of the Group. The management carries out overall financial risk management covering specific areas, such as market risk (including 
foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk), credit risk, and liquidity risk and investing excess cash.

The Group’s activities in future periods will expose it to a variety of financial risks, including the effects of changes in foreign 
currency exchange rates and interest rates.

The Group does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes.

(a) Interest rate risk management
The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk relates to its bank call accounts and other financial assets. The bank call accounts  
and other financial assets carry a rate of interest up to 1% – 2% per annum.

(b) Credit risk management
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Group. 
The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient collateral, where 
appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are banks registered in the U.A.E.

(c) Foreign currency risk management
At the reporting date, there were no significant exchange rate risks as substantially all financial assets and financial liabilities 
are denominated in United Arab Emirates Dirhams (AED) or United States Dollars (USD) to which the AED is fixed.

The exchange rate used in conversion of AED amounts to USD 1 is equivalent to AED 3.675.
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20. Financial risk management (continued)
(d) Liquidity risk management
Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the management which has built an appropriate liquidity risk 
management framework for the management of the Group’s short, medium and long-term funding. The Group manages liquidity 
risk by maintaining adequate reserves, and by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity 
profiles of financial assets and financial liabilities.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial assets and liabilities. The 
tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial assets and liabilities based on the expected maturity 
and the earliest date on which the Group is expected to receive for financial assets and to pay for financial liabilities. The table 
includes principal cash flows only.

Interest rate
 %

Less than 1 year
 AED’000

2-5 years
 AED’000

Total
 AED’000

Financial assets

2014

Non-interest bearing financial assets – 35 – 35

Interest bearing financial assets 1 – 2 4,315,013 – 4,315,013

4,315,048 – 4,315,048

2013

Non-interest bearing financial assets – – – –

Interest bearing financial assets – – – –

– – –

Interest rate
 %

Less than 1 year
 AED’000

2-5 years
 AED’000

Total
 AED’000

Financial liabilities

2014

Non-interest bearing financial liabilities – 557,270 30,915 588,185

2013

Non-interest bearing financial liabilities – 356,273 13 356,286

21. Capital management
The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to equity holders of the Company. 
The Group’s objective when managing capital is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor and creditor confidence 
and	to	sustain	future	development	of	the	business;	to	provide	returns	for	shareholders;	and	to	optimise	the	capital	structure	to	
reduce the cost of capital. There are no externally imposed capital requirements on the Group.

To enable the Group to meet its objective, the Directors monitor capital through constant review of the Group’s capital investment 
programme and through regular budgeting and planning processes.

22. Approval of the consolidated financial statements
The consolidated financial statements was approved by the Board of Directors and signed for issuance on 1 March 2015.
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IMPORTANT NOTICE

THIS ANNUAL REPORT  AND ITS CONTENTS ARE NOT FOR RELEASE, PUBLICATION OR DISTRIBUTION, IN WHOLE  
OR IN PART, DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY IN OR INTO ANY JURISDICTION WHERE SUCH DISTRIBUTION IS UNLAWFUL.
This Annual Report has been prepared and issued by Dubai Parks and Resorts PJSC (the “Company”). For the purposes of this 
notice, “Annual Report” means this document, its contents or any part of it, any oral Annual Report, any question or answer 
session and any written or oral material discussed or distributed during the Annual Report meeting.

The information set out in this Annual Report may be subject to updating, revision, verification and amendment, and such 
information may change materially. Neither the Company, any of its parent or subsidiary undertakings, the subsidiary undertakings 
of such parent undertakings, nor any of such person’s respective directors, officers, employees, agents, affiliates or advisers is 
under an obligation to update or keep current the information contained in this Annual Report to which it relates, or to provide  
the recipient with access to any additional information that may arise in connection with it and any opinions expressed in this 
Annual Report are subject to change without notice. None of the Company or any of its parent or subsidiary undertakings, or the 
subsidiary undertakings of such parent undertakings, and any of such person’s respective directors, officers, employees, agents, 
affiliates or advisers shall have any liability whatsoever (in negligence or otherwise) for any loss whatsoever arising from any use  
of this Annual Report, or otherwise arising in connection with this Annual Report.

This Annual Report is an advertisement for the purposes of the United Kingdom Prospectus Rules and the information contained 
herein is not an offer of securities for sale in the United States nor any other jurisdiction. This Annual Report does not constitute  
or form part of, and should not be construed as, any offer, invitation, solicitation or recommendation to purchase, sell or subscribe 
for any securities in any jurisdiction, nor should it or any part of it form the basis of, or be relied on in connection with, any contract 
or commitment whatsoever.

This Annual Report is for information purposes and convenient reference. It is not definitive advice, nor should it be relied upon  
as such. This Annual Report does not purport to contain all of the information that may be required to evaluate any potential 
transaction and should not be relied on in connection with any such potential transaction. Any projection, estimate, forecast or 
other ‘forward-looking’ statement in this Annual Report only illustrates hypothetical performance under specified assumptions  
of events or conditions, and is not a reliable indicator of future performance.

To the extent available, the industry and market data contained in this Annual Report may have come from official or third party 
sources.  Such third party industry publications, studies and surveys generally state that the data contained therein have been 
obtained from sources believed to be reliable, but that there is no guarantee of the accuracy or completeness of such data. While 
the Company believes that each of these publications, studies and surveys has been prepared by a reputable source, the Company 
has not independently verified the data contained therein. In addition, certain of the industry and market data contained in this 
Annual Report come from the Company’s own internal research and estimates based on the knowledge and experience of the 
Company’s management in the market in which the Company operates. While the Company  generally believes that such research 
and estimates are reasonable and reliable, they, and their underlying methodology and assumptions, have not been verified by any 
independent source for accuracy or completeness and are subject to change without notice. Accordingly, undue reliance should not 
be placed on any of the industry or market data contained in this Annual Report.

You agree to be bound by the foregoing limitations and conditions and, in particular, will be deemed to have represented, 
warranted and undertaken that you have read and agree to comply with the contents of this notice.
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